
 

1 

State of New York 

Banking Department 
--------------------------------------------------------------------x 

In the Matter of    
 
LEND-MOR MORTGAGE BANKERS CORP.  
D/B/A  LEND-MOR FUNDING                        
B500419 
 
A Licensed Mortgage Banker Pursuant To  
Article XII-D of the New York Banking Law   

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

--------------------------------------------------------------------x 
 
This Settlement Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and 

between Lend-Mor Mortgage Bankers Corp. D/B/A Lend-Mor Funding (“Lend-Mor”) and the 

State of New York Banking Department (“Banking Department”), collectively (the “Settling 

Parties”), evidencing an agreement between the Settling Parties to resolve, without a hearing, 

the violations cited herein by Lend-Mor of  New York State General Business Law Article 22-

A Sections 349 and 350, Part 38 of the General Regulations of the Banking Board (“GRBB”) 

3 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 38, and Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (Title 15 U.S.C. 

Section 45) upon and subject to the terms and conditions hereof.  

I. 

RECITALS 

1. Lend-Mor, headquartered at 30 West Merrick Road, Valley Stream, New York, 

11580 was granted a license by the Banking Department on January 11, 1995 to engage in 

the business of a mortgage banker pursuant to Article XII-D of the New York Banking Law 

(“Banking Law”).  
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2. Section 44 of the Banking Law provides, in part, that the New York Superintendent 

of Banks (the “Superintendent”) may, in a proceeding after notice and a hearing, require a 

licensed mortgage banker to pay to the people of this State a penalty for a violation of the 

Banking Law and any regulation promulgated thereunder. 

3. Part 38 Section 38.8 of the General Regulations of the Banking Board, provides 

that a mortgage banker may be subject to disciplinary action by the Banking Department for, 

among other things, violations of Article 12-D of the Banking Law, the regulations 

promulgated thereunder, or violations of state or federal law indicating that the entity is unfit 

to engage in the business of a mortgage banker. 

4. In June 2008, the Banking Department received a letter from a national bank 

(“ABC Bank 1”) that was addressed to Lend-Mor, in which ABC Bank 1 demanded that Lend-

Mor cease and desist from issuing mail solicitations to consumers that imply that they are 

from ABC Bank 1. 

5.  Examiners from the Banking Department  contacted Lend-Mor and discovered 

that Lend-Mor sent 11,500 mail solicitations (the “2008 solicitation”) to New York 

homeowners in 2008. A copy of the 2008 solicitation is annexed as Exhibit A. 

6. By letter dated August 8, 2008, the Banking Department advised Lend-Mor that the 

2008 mail solicitation violated Part 38.2(e) and advised Lend-Mor that violations of this nature 

are punishable by license/ registration suspension or revocation and fines of up to $2,500 for 

each day during which such violation continues. 

7.  By letter dated September 4, 2008, Lend-Mor stated that they had discontinued 

sending out any further solicitations. 

8. In January 2009, the Banking Department received a letter from a state-chartered 

bank („ABC Bank 2‟) in which ABC Bank 2 states that Lend-Mor sent a mail solicitation to a 

consumer that it believes is fraudulent, deceitful, and misleading. 
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9. The Banking Department again contacted Lend-Mor and discovered that Lend-Mor 

sent 21,600 mail solicitations (the “2009 solicitation") to New York homeowners in the first 

quarter of 2009. A copy of the 2009 solicitation is annexed as Exhibit B.  

10.  The contents of the 2008 solicitation and the 2009 solicitation (collectively, the 

“solicitation”) are substantially identical. 

Misleading Statements 

11. The solicitation prominently states “First Notice*”, “RE: ABC Bank”, and  

“Customer Reference # C-12345” in the space normally occupied by the name and address 

of the sender of the letter. Lend-Mor‟s name is only included on the bottom of the page with 

no indication that Lend-Mor is the sender of the letter.  

12.   By failing to identify Lend-Mor as the advertiser and by substituting the phrase 

“First Notice*”, “RE: ABC Bank”  “Customer Reference # C-12345” in the place for Lend-

Mor‟s legal name and address, the mail solicitation appears to be from the consumer‟s 

mortgage lender,  ABC Bank, when in fact, it is not.  

13.    The solicitation includes the statement “Because of your excellent payment 

record with ABC Bank your credit score has improved. We have been trying to contact you 

for some time. Unfortunately our attempts sometimes get confused with those of 

telemarketers”.  The letter does not explain that the consumer is being contacted as part of 

Lend-Mor‟s direct marketing efforts to sell mortgage products. 

14. By stating that their telephone calls are being “confused with those of 

telemarketers”, consumers are misled to believe that Lend-Mor‟s telephone calls and the mail 

solicitation are not from a company that is selling mortgage products using unsolicited 

telephone marketing calls, which in fact, is not true. 

15. Accordingly, both solicitations violate GRBB Part 38 Section 38.2(e), which 

provides that no mortgage banker shall fraudulently or deceitfully advertise a mortgage loan, 



 

4 

or misrepresent the terms, conditions or charges incident to a mortgage loan in any 

advertisement therefore.  

16.  In addition, the solicitations violate Section 5(a) of the Federal Trade Commission 

Act (Title 15 U.S.C. Section 45), which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or 

affecting commerce, New York State General Business Law Article 22-A Section 349  which 

declares deceptive practices unlawful, and Section 350, which declares false advertisement 

unlawful. 

II 

SETTLEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

Without admitting or denying the Department‟s findings, Lend-Mor is willing to resolve 

the violations cited herein by entering into this Agreement and freely and voluntarily waives 

its right to a hearing under Banking Law Sections 44 and 598 on such violations. Therefore, in 

consideration of the promises and covenants set forth herein, the Settling Parties agree, as 

follows: 

1. Lend-Mor agrees to take all necessary steps to ensure its compliance with all 

applicable federal and state laws, regulations, and supervisory requirements relating to its 

mortgage business, including, but not limited to:    

a. Complying with the requirements of the Federal Truth-In-Lending Act and 

Regulation Z , Article 12-D of the New York Banking Law, and Part 38 of the 

General Regulations of the Banking Board; and 

b. ensuring that its advertisements and solicitations do not mislead consumers 

as to the identity of the entity making the offer or the nature of the offer. All 

advertisements and solicitations will clearly identify Lend-Mor as the source 

of the advertisement or solicitation; and 

c. ensuring that its advertisements do not mislead consumers as to the terms 
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and conditions of credit it is offering and that such advertisements disclose 

clearly and conspicuously the existence of material terms, conditions, and 

limitations relating to any advertised offer of credit; and  

d. ensuring that it will not advertise terms of credit using footnotes, asterisks, 

small print and color contrasts that materially contradict or modify the 

principal message of its advertisements, and will disclose clearly and 

conspicuously all material information.  

2. Lend-Mor agrees to develop appropriate written advertisement policies and 

procedures designed to ensure compliance with all applicable federal and state laws, 

regulations, supervisory requirements, and guidelines.   The policies and procedures shall, at 

a minimum: (i) designate an individual responsible for monitoring compliance with all 

applicable federal and state laws, regulations, supervisory requirements, and guidelines;  (ii)  

include a listing of all applicable laws, regulations, and truth in advertising guidelines;  (iii) 

establish a mechanism for ensuring that all applicable laws, regulations, and truth in 

advertising guidelines are  met; (iv) establish a training program to ensure that Lend-Mor and 

its employees involved in preparing or approving advertisements understand all applicable 

federal and state laws, regulations, and truth in advertising guidelines.  

3. Within ninety (90) days from the effective date of this Agreement, Lend-Mor agrees 

to submit a draft of its advertisement policies and procedures to the Banking Department. 

4. Within one hundred twenty (120) days from the effective date of this Agreement, 

Lend-Mor agrees to submit a copy of its final advertisement policies and procedures to the 

Banking Department together with a letter from an authorized officer of Lend-Mor indicating 

his/her approval of such policies and procedures.  Lend-Mor further agrees to provide copies 

of all advertisements run by it for the twelve (12) month period following the effective date of 

this Agreement.   



 

6 

5. Lend-Mor agrees to pay a fine of $ 10,000 payable in ten equal monthly 

installments as follows: 

 $1,000 upon execution of this Agreement. 

 $1,000 on or before the 15th day of each of the immediately following 
nine months.  

 
6. Lend-Mor further agrees that such payment will be made in immediately available 

funds in accordance with Banking Department payment instructions.   

III. 

MISCELLANEOUS TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. The Settling Parties acknowledge that Lend-Mor ‟s failure to  comply with any of 

the settlement terms and conditions of this Agreement may result in the Banking Department 

taking action to revoke Lend-Mor ‟s license to engage in the business of a mortgage banker 

under Article 12-D of the Banking Law.   

2. The Settling Parties acknowledge that entering into this Agreement shall not bar, 

estop, or otherwise prevent the Superintendent, or any state, federal or local agency or 

department or any prosecutorial authority from taking any other action affecting Lend-Mor, 

any of its current or former owners, officers, directors, employees, or insiders, or their 

successors or assigns.  

3. This Agreement may not be altered, modified or changed unless in writing signed 

by the Superintendent or his designee.  

4. This Agreement shall be enforceable and remain in effect unless stayed or 

terminated in writing by the Superintendent or his designee.  

5. The effective date of this Agreement is the date on which it is executed by the 

Deputy Superintendent of Banks for Mortgage Banking.  
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6. All written communications to the Banking Department regarding this Agreement 

should be sent as follows:  

Attention: 
Rholda L. Ricketts  
Deputy Superintendent of Banks 
Mortgage Banking Division 
State of New York Banking Department 
One State Street,  
New York, New York 10004 
 

 

7. All written communications to Lend-Mor regarding this Agreement should be sent 

as follows.   

Attention: 
Farhad Bokhour   
Lend-Mor Mortgage Bankers Corp.  
D/B/A Lend-Mor Funding                      
30 West Merrick Road  
Valley Stream, NY 11580 
 
 

8. This Agreement is not confidential; therefore it is available to the public.   

 

WHEREFORE, the Settling Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed.  

 

By: _____________________  

Farhad Bokhour   
Lend-Mor Mortgage Bankers Corp.  
D/B/A Lend-Mor Funding                      
 
Dated:   
 
 
 
By:   
 
Rholda L. Ricketts 
Deputy Superintendent of Banks 
State of New York Banking Department 

 
Dated:   
 



First Notice* 
RE: 
Customer Reference#....., 

30 West Merrick Road 
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Exhibit A 
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Bronxville NY l 0708-2 703 

Attention: 

Because of your excellent payment record with a:Bis ~your credit score has irnpro~ed. We have 
been trying to reach you for some tirre. Unfurtl.mately our attempts sorretirnes get confused ~ those of 
telemarketers. We urge you to contact om: Mortgage Department at the number below imme4iately. Because 
yam credit score has in1provcd you could now qualify for a low cost, 30 year fixed rate loan 

In 12/2002 you acquired a mortgage of 
score yom new payment could be: 

,rfl:h a very high interest rate. With your improved credit 

Your New 30 Year Fixed rrortgagc payrrent....$1, 175.85 (5.875% I 6.25% APR) 
Yom New 30 Year Fixed payment with $25,000 CASH OUT. ... $1,323.73 (5.875% /6.25ro APR) 

After rcvie·wing records Vv'C have fotmd that yom trortgage on your property located at 1S in 
good standing vvith tlh!I»CZ ..... With your fuvorable credit blstory we can now offur yo:u Otn:' fixed rate 
mortgage programs. 

Please reference our 30 year fixed loan program You can substantially reduce yam Tmrtgage: payrrent and 
cmrent interest rate, consolidate any debts and get cash out for any reason. 

1 

Tbis is a time-sensitive matter, so please contact yotrr assigned Mortgage Loan Consultant wil;hout delay. 

Please provide your Customer Rererence Number: C-•Utl. 

Andrew Tucker 
Senior Mortgage Consultant 

Office: 1- (866) 576-4940 

Lcnd-M or M ortgagc Bankers Cprp. 30 West Merrick Road, Valley Stream: NY 11580 
·' J 

/luthorized Program Provider ,, 
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Exhibit B 
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Because of )'Oilre'JU'Pihmt paymeut record with a • l • r Ri1B 8Mr; yoor credit score bas improved. We 
baYe been trying m ~you for some tinle.. Uufortunmcly out att.empts sometimes get confused with those j 
of~~ We urge you to contacl our Mo.r~pge Departments M tbe number below immed'"nuely. 
Because your credit score has improved 'JfJlJ could ROW quafiiY fOT a low COS4 30 yeaT fixed rare loan. j 

. I I 
1~ GJWar __.you acquired a 1M~ of.__ with a very high intereSt rate.. With youT improved 1 

~ M yonr new payment could be... - j 

~our *ew SO Year Fiud mortgage payment $1,393.38 {450% 15.oo% APR) 
our-New Bo Year Frxed payment with $2:5~000 CASH OUT$l,S2R06 {450% 15.00% APR.J I 
. \ I 

~ ~revieWing records we have foond that your mortgage on yanr property locared atWP 'liM! iiJ is in j 
~ ~stanchpgwith4. t 7 ill%1 7 tb Witityourfavm:ablecredirhistmywecannowoffer-ym:J0\11' I 
fl FiXed rate mortgage programs. 1 

t t t 
PleaSe refetbnce om- 30 year fixed loan program. Y ffil. can suhstamially reduce your mortgage paytnF.Alt and j 
bnlTeiti: intetest r.ll!e, consolidate any debts and get casn ot:n for «nY teasort. 

~ · ~is a ti~hlv;;;-atter,. go please con~ your assi~ Mongag; Lorm ConsUi~t;.i~;delay-: - j 

Senior Mrn-tgage A mnt · · ~ . , j 

Om~!e/1-(~8) 475-000 l j 
l j I 'lo 

l i ~d-C\P.or Moftg:JgE! ~hkel's Cmp. 3~ Metrick Rcacl, Valley Streal'll, NV l.l58{J j 
f I / ~ 
~1 ucensed b-1 !he Penmy!m~fff ~ttment of Banking and New Je~ ~er.t of !mnldt;g and ~n:WF<>I}>:e. 
~ T~~r<$of:d bv t:li! sra::e t;f Catmer::tiwt Depmtm~oj BDntdttg Gild Ls~ A~i!f:e scmk;:r: 1\.'Y:J SOnfd:-.g ~ortmem-, j 
~=~.,: ! l . 
~- ~~~ l : J 
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